
 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, April 18, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 4, 2018 Meeting 
 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 6219 & 6443 S US Highway 51 – Town of Rock 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey for the property located at 6219 & 
6443 S US Highway 51 in the Town of Rock 
  

4. Site Plan Approval – 701 White Avenue – Fairbanks Morse Painting Building 
Review and consideration of a Site Plan for an Additional Accessory Building on the 
property located at 701 White Avenue 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

6. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Amber DesRoberts in the Community 
Development Department at 364-6650 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 
Notice Posted:  April 13, 2018 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, April 4, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm. Commissioners Weeden, Ruster, Tinder, and 
Councilor Leavy were present. Commissioners Haynes, Johnson, Faragher, Finnegan were 
absent. Due to requirements for a quorum, Councilor Leavy acted as a voting member per 
Section 1.87(2)(c) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit. 

 
2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 21, 2018 Meeting 

Councilor Leavy moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion. 
The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

3. Conditional Use Permit – 555 Lawton Avenue -  ABC Supply Company 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
replacement and expansion of an office building in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, 
for the property located at 555 Lawton Avenue 

Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

Joe Stadelman, 555 South River Street, President of Angus Young Associates, indicated that the 
Conditional Use was for an office use, and they are in the early phases on this project. The 
exact location, square footage, and height of the building have not been finalized.  ABC Supply 
has purchased the site, but the agreement allows Cannonball thirty months from the date of 
the agreement day to move.  

Ms. Christensen asked if they were going larger or smaller on the existing footprint on the 
lower level. Mr. Stadelman stated that the current concepts are larger than the existing 
footprint. One of the concepts has a basement that would have a vehicular door that would be 
mostly storage or mechanical space. It was accessible off of the southwest corner of the dock 
off Lawton and ABC Parkway. Ms. Christensen asked what they were going to do with the 
warehouse. Mr. Stadelman said the warehouse will be demolished because it doesn’t benefit 
the project.  

Commissioner Weeden asked how they plan to provide the required parking spaces. Mr. 
Stadelman mentioned that they need to work on a phased parking plan for this building. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Commissioner Weeden stated that he was comfortable with the office use but would like Mr. 
Stadelman to bring detailed site plans to Plan Commission for review. 

Commissioner Weeden asked if we could give Mr. Stadelman some type of approval for the 
Conditional Use Permit to allow the redevelopment for office use purposes. Ms. Christensen 
stated that the Plan Commission could remove from the first condition the language “as shown 
on the site plan submitted with the application” and then add a condition that states the Site 
Plans will be submitted for Plan Commission approval prior to the issuance of a building permit.    

Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit as described by Ms. 
Christensen.  Councilor Leavy seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen stated the Attachment of E Ridge Road from the Town of Turtle was 
approved:  the City Council suspended the rules and took action on Monday.  The City 
Council held the public hearing for the Zoning Map Amendment for 1575 Prairie Avenue 
and laid it over under the rules, and the City Council suspended the rules and then 
approved the Zoning Map Amendment for 1905 Mound Avenue and 1950 Church Street on 
Monday. The Conditional Use Permit for the Rock was also approved by City Council. 
 
The Parks Staff and Public Work’s Director are preparing a new master park plan for Eagles 
Ridge Park. They are going to revise the plan from 2010 and try to get the Tax Increment 
Finance District (TIF) money allocated for park improvements expended this year.   
  
The next Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee Meeting is scheduled for April 11, 2018 
at Kolak.  

 
5. Adjournment 

Councilor Leavy moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:40pm.  
 

 Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 
 



   

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: April 18, 2018 
 

Agenda Item: 3 
 

File Number: CSM-2018-03 

Applicant: Zaremba Group, LLC Owners: Wisconsin Homesites 
Rockvale LLC (6219 S. U.S. Hwy 51) 
& Meadows Development Group (6443 
S. U.S. Hwy 51) 
 

Location: 6219 & 6443 South U.S. 
Highway 51 

Existing Zoning: B2, Large Scale 
Commercial District, & MHP, Mobile 
Home Park Overlay District (Town of 
Rock Zoning) 

Existing Land Use: Mobile Home 
Park, Vacant 

Total CSM Area: 48.339 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Zaremba Group, LLC, on behalf of Meadows Development Group, has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and a two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 6219 & 6443 South U.S. Highway 51 in 
the Town of Rock. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, 
conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City of Beloit’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
 
Key Issues: 
 The applicant intends to adjust the lot line between the parcels located at 6219 & 6443 S. U.S. Highway 51 in order to 

improve access for future development. This CSM is intended for the construction of a Dollar General store on 
proposed Lot 1, which will provide better customer accessibility than the existing lot arrangement.  

 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the existing lot lines in red and the proposed lot lines in orange. The 
dashed red line represents the existing lot line that will be adjusted.    

 The property located at 6219 S. U.S. Highway 51 contains the Rockvale Mobile Home Park which has access off S. 
U.S. Highway 51 and Townline Road via private roads: Rockvale Court, Crystal Drive, Gold Road, and Pearl Lane. 

 The property located at 6443 S. U.S. Highway 51 is vacant and currently only accessible from Gold Road. Direct 
access off S. U.S. Highway 51 is not feasible for this property, which is why the property owner, Meadows 
Development Group, is seeking a lot line adjustment to improve accessibility for future development.  

 The proposed lot configuration allows better customer accessibility to proposed Lot 1 by adding access off Crystal 
Drive and allows both lots to share access off Gold Road. 

 Proposed Lot 1 includes 427.52 feet of frontage on S. U.S. Highway 51, 233.40 feet of frontage on Gold Road, and is 
1.73 acres in area.  Proposed Lot 1 will be located at the NE corner of S. U.S. Hwy 51 and Gold Road. Proposed Lot 
1 will be situated in the B2 district, Large Scale Commercial, and its zoning classification will not change. 

 Proposed Lot 2 includes 90.81 feet of frontage on S. U.S. Highway 51, 67.51 feet of frontage on Crystal Drive, 100.03 
feet of frontage on Gold Road, 241.46 feet of frontage on Pearl Lane, and is 46.61 acres in area. Proposed Lot 2 will 
include a majority of the existing mobile home park, and will remain zoned B2 and MHP, Mobile Home Park Overlay 
District, as shown on the attached Location & Zoning Map. 

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any objections. 
 Land is beyond the limits of the current Future Land Use Map. 
 The application and proposed CSM are attached for your review. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the properties located at 6219 & 6443 South U.S. Highway 51 in the Town of Rock, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2018. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution



   

   



   

 



   

 



   

 



   

 



   

 



   

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6219 AND 6443 SOUTH U.S. HIGHWAY 51 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of 
Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the City 
of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located 6219 & 6443 
South U.S. Highway 51 in the Town of Rock, containing 48.3 acres, more or less, is located within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-lot 
Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

PART OF LOT ONE (1) OF THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP RECORDED DECEMBER 28, 1983, 
AS DOCUMENT NO. 980156, IN VOLUME 11 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS ON PAGES 358 
AND 359 AND LOT TWO (2) OF THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP RECORDED JULY 20, 2000, 
AS DOCUMENT NO. 1463732, IN VOLUME 23 OF CERTIFEID SURVEY MAPS ON PAGES 
296 TO 300, BOTH RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR ROCK 
COUNTY, WISCONSIN; BEING PART OF THE SE ¼ OF SECTION 36, T. 2 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 
4TH P.M., TOWN OF ROCK, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit does hereby 

conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located 6219 & 6443 
South U.S. Highway 51 in the Town of Rock, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2018. 
 

Approved this 18th day of April, 2018. 
 
                                                                                                    
 

 
            _______________________________________ 

                  James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

 



REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 18, 2018 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: SPR-2018-03

Request: Additional Accessory Bldg Owner: Fairbanks Morse LLC Location: 701 White Avenue

Existing Zoning: M-2, General
Manufacturing

Existing Land Use: Manufacturing Area: 32.8 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Angus Young Associates, on behalf of Fairbanks Morse Engine, has requested Plan Commission review and approval of
a site plan for the construction of an additional accessory building on the manufacturing property located at 701 White
Avenue. According to Section 6.3.4(g) of the Zoning Ordinance, industrial sites may only have more than two detached
accessory buildings if the Plan Commission approves the site plan. The subject property is a 33-acre manufacturing
campus with up to 10 accessory buildings that have been constructed over the facility’s long tenure in Beloit. The
proposed painting building is the first accessory building to be proposed since the 6.3.4(g) standard became effective.

Key Issues:
 As shown on the attached plans, the applicant has proposed the construction of a 15,476 square-foot painting

building to be located in the center of the Fairbanks campus. The proposed painting building will be surrounded
by existing buildings, and will not be visible from a public street.

 This project involves removal of an existing railroad spur followed by construction of two new railroad spurs and a
railroad spur connection to the existing painting building (#181).

 The proposed building will be a high bay single-story building with a mechanical mezzanine level. This project
also involves numerous improvements including new concrete, sanitary & storm sewer facilities, asphalt repairs,
and other miscellaneous items.

 The proposed painting building will have metal siding and doors, which are allowed in manufacturing districts.
Given that the proposed painting building will not be visible to the public, Planning staff is not recommending any
additional requirements related to landscaping, setbacks, or building materials. Accessory buildings do not trigger
full compliance with the Lighting and Landscaping Codes that apply to new primary buildings.

 The site plans are attached and hard copies will be available at the meeting. The applicant has submitted a Site
Plan Review application and the Review Agents are currently reviewing the plans.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as appropriate for General Industrial uses.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating and sustaining economic growth.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached plans for an additional detached
accessory building on the Fairbanks Morse property located at 701 White Avenue, subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes a new painting building as shown on the attached site plans that may be up to 16,000
square feet in floor area.

2. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Zoning Compliance
and an Architectural Review Certificate.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Overview Plan, Site Plan, Building Elevations, and Resolution



P
a

rk
A

v
en

u
e

White Avenue

Proposed
Building



Existing Paint Bldg

Proposed Paint Bldg





RESOLUTION
APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL ACCESSORY BUILDING

ON THE FAIRBANKS MORSE PROPERTY AT 701 WHITE AVENUE

WHEREAS, Angus Young Associates, on behalf of Fairbanks Morse Engine, has
requested Plan Commission review and approval of a site plan for the construction of an
additional accessory building on the manufacturing property located at 701 White Avenue; and

WHEREAS, Section 6.3.4(g) of the Zoning Ordinance stipulates that manufacturing
sites may only have more than two detached accessory buildings if the Plan Commission
approves the site plan; and

WHEREAS, there are more than two accessory buildings on the Fairbanks campus and
the proposed 15,476 square-foot painting building will be located out of public view in the center
of the Fairbanks campus while complying with all applicable codes and regulations; and

WHEREAS, a full set of civil site plans will be reviewed and approved by City staff and
the Review Agents prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby approves the site plan for the construction of an
additional accessory building on the Fairbanks Morse property located at 701 White Avenue,
subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes a new painting building as shown on the attached site
plans that may be up to 16,000 square feet in floor area.

2. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain a
Certificate of Zoning Compliance and an Architectural Review Certificate.

Adopted this 18th day of April, 2018.

_
James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director


